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Combi makes your daily life more enjoyable and comfortable as we aim at bringing you a creative and heart-warming lifestyle. A shortening of the word "combination"
which itself refers to the combination of mother and child,
Combi provides products and services that establish
wholesome environments to support the healthy growth
of infants.
With our eyes on the global community, we are rapidly
expanding from our core focus on mothers and children
into the overall life styles of families. We also plan a global
expansion of our activities and efforts in the area of
"Innovative Brand", "Quality", and "Efficient organization
and employees".
Based upon our corporate standpoint as a partner supporting baby carers and promoting the wonderful experience of baby care, Combi will take full advantage of state
of the art advances and information technologies to
improve our business operations as well as our products.
We believe that our activities in various areas will bring the
world a more enjoyable and comfortable lifestyle.
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Consolidated financial highlights
Combi Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries
Years ended March 31

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2004

2005

2005

Fiscal year
Net sales
Operating income
Net income for the fiscal year

¥ 28,824
1,559
861

¥ 30,149
1,640
1,513

$ 280,751
15,279
14,094

¥ 15,723
26,430

¥ 16,776
28,516

$ 156,223
265,542

¥

¥

$

As at the end of the fiscal year
Total shareholders' equity
Total assets

Per share data (Yen and U.S. dollars)
Net income for the year
Total shareholders' equity
Dividends paid

47.18
874.87
20.00

84.30
934.35
20.00

0.78
8.70
0.18

Notes:
1. Figures for net income per share have been computed based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the fiscal year.
2. Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the exchange rate of US$1=¥107.39 as of March 31, 2005.
3. The figures provided for in the above summary and the financial statements (including Notes) available in this annual report are in principle
indicated in millions of yen or thousands of U.S. dollars after omitting amounts below one million and one thousand, respectively.

Net sales (Millions of yen)

2005
2004
2003
2002
2001

Net income for the year (Millions of yen)

30,149
28,824
29,643
28,571
28,084

Total assets (Millions of yen)

2005
2004

2004

861

2003

877
605

2002

1,446

2001

Breakdown by business segment of net sales (2005)

28,516
26,430

2003

27,116

2002

27,296

2001

1,513

2005

Fitness and
Healthcare
10.4%

26,465
Baby Care Products
and Toys
89.6%
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To our shareholders

From left: Shoji Shibata (Executive Vice-President), Hiromasa Matsuura (President), Yasuo Matsuura (Chairman)

Combi's strength lies in its planning and development capabilities to supply
customers with innovative products. Combi is making Group-wide efforts to
globalize its business so that the Combi brand will be recognized globally as
an innovative brand focusing on baby care products.
Looking back on the fiscal year ended March
31, 2005 (Fiscal 2005)
While the Japanese economy began showing signs of
recovery, personal consumption has continued to lack
momentum and stopped short of full recovery.
Under these circumstances, aspiring to be an enterprise
that supports "combi"nation of mothers and babies, the
Combi Group has broadly expanded its business fields
from child care to health-related products by building up
customer confidence in unfailing technology and quality
through its core business of baby care products, and by
enlarging business targets to "families" on the strength of
these technological resources.
In the fiscal year ended March 2005, sales in the

2

domestic baby-product business declined due to an environmental change in the stroller market. However, sales
from the apparel and childcare environment support businesses in Japan grew sharply, and so did sales in the overseas businesses. As a result, consolidated net sales
increased 4.6% year on year to ¥30,149 million.
In terms of profitability, cost reduction initiatives,
including increasing the proportion of raw material
sourced locally at the manufacturing subsidiary in China,
have helped the gross profit ratio exceed that of the previous year. Operating income increased 5.2% year on year
to ¥1,640 million and net income increased 75.8% to
¥1,513 million as a result of the enhanced added value of
child car seats in Japan and their robust sales in Taiwan.
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Distributing earnings to its shareholders is one of the
most important corporate management policies for the
Combi Group. Based on our fundamental dividend policy
of offering stable profit distribution in accordance with
business performance while strengthening our corporate
disposition, we have decided to disburse a dividend of
¥20 per share for the full fiscal year.

Aimed at the top "Innovative" Brand ─
Development and production systems
geared toward global markets
I believe that Combi's strength lies in its planning and
development capabilities to supply customers with innovative products. Even against the trend of Japan's falling
birthrate since the 1980s, Combi has been expanding its
businesses by continuously developing and introducing
products in new fields. Today, as we enter another phase
of reform essential for new growth, we are exploring business opportunities in overseas markets, with particular
focus on Asia and the United States. We are building
development and production systems geared toward globalization, whilst undertaking various operational reforms,
including ERP (enterprise resource planning) which was
implemented in April 2004. Combi is making Group-wide
efforts to ensure that the Combi brand will be globally
recognized in the near future as an innovative brand that
focuses on baby care products.

innovative brand, (2) become the world leader in quality,
and (3) create the world's most efficient organization and
employees, as we look towards the year 2010.

Forecasts for the fiscal year ending
March 31, 2006 (Fiscal 2006)
While the business climate surrounding the Combi Group
is expected to remain challenging, by securing earnings in
the domestic market and expanding our business globally,
we anticipate to generate consolidated net sales of
¥33,800 million (up 12.1% year on year) and a net income
of ¥1,050 million (down 30.6%) for the Fiscal Year ending
March 2006.
We appreciate the continued support of our shareholders.

July 2005

Hiromasa Matsuura, President and CEO

Medium and long term growth strategies
─ looking towards the year 2010
In light of the falling birthrate, it is difficult to expect for
the domestic baby care market to expand sharply. Under
these circumstances, Combi will be seeking to secure
earnings in the domestic market by further enhancing the
value of its main products of strollers, child car seats and
high chairs and by introducing more new products.
We will also drive globalization of our business as our
priority strategy by introducing medium-priced products
to the North American market, where we have heretofore
marketed mainly high-priced products, and by expanding
and reinforcing our existing sales channels. In Asia,
Taiwan's favorable business can be expected, and we will
prioritize profit in the Chinese market by rolling out our
sales mainly focused on wealthy group in the coastal area.
At the same time, based on the corporate stance of
being a partner that supports baby carers and promoting
the wonderful experience of baby care, we will make allout efforts to (1) establish world leadership as the top

3
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Target for the year 2010
The 2010 vision
Combi has identified "Target for the Year 2010" as a guideline to be pursued by the entire group and is implementing
reforms aimed at achieving the 2010 vision.

Establishing World Leadership as the Top "Innovative" Brand
Becoming the Worldwide Leader in Quality
Creating the World's Most Efficient Organization and Employees

Combi will strive to be a global enterprise with the baby-product business as its core business, by establishing world
leadership as the top innovative brand, becoming the world leader in quality, and creating the most efficient organization and employees.

Establishing world leadership as the top innovative brand

2010
As a development-oriented enterprise, Combi will continue to carry out activities that will serve to improve customers'
lifestyles and help our brand to be recognized as the top innovative brand by constantly anticipating the times and
offering demand-creating products and services.

In order to gain an accurate understanding of users' latent needs, we collect customer input via consumer monitors

and "Combi Town," our childcare website, and this input is directly reflected in our product development.

Our Baby Label series, commercialized through these efforts, won the Good Design Award in 2003 for its advanced

features, functionality and design. Also, our Baby Soft Carrier Ninna Nanna F-180 became the first baby care product
ever to win the Gold Prize of the Good Design Award in 2004.

Becoming the worldwide leader in quality

Combi will strive to increase the confidence of its customers and other stakeholders by enhancing quality, not merely in
products, but more broadly in its management as a whole.

While complying with statutory safety standards, Combi controls product quality by setting even more rigorous compa-

ny-wide quality control standards. Also, in the interest of winning greater social confidence, we are conducting a variety
of activities including protecting personal information and promoting other management compliance practices, as well as
undertaking company-wide certification of ISO 14001 as part of our environment-conscious management.

Creating the world's most efficient organization and employees

We will seek to upgrade individual employees' skills, increase collaboration and create new ideas and value by energizing
our people and organization.
More specifically, we have already adopted a performance-based human resource system for management staff as
part of our reforms. By applying this system to all our employees we hope to operate a more reliable evaluation system
that is closely linked to business performance.
In conjunction with this the Company has introduced a Creative Proposal system to exploit new business opportunities.
This system is aimed at encouraging Combi Group employees to create new business opportunities based on their free
ideas, and developing next-generation entrepreneurs and leaders.

4
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Brand management
Ever since its foundation in 1957, Combi has moved forward with corporate activities aimed at establishing a brand that
is capable of winning consumer confidence. Convinced that the Combi brand is one of our important management
resources, we established a brand platform (composed of vision, mission and value) when we adopted the new logo in
2002, and have since been promoting brand management on a company-wide basis.

The new Combi logo expresses
our corporate standpoint as
– a partner supporting baby carers and promoting the
wonderful experience of baby care.
It also communicates
– the pleasure and excitement of baby care and our high
standards of quality, reliability and sophistication.

Brand Vision
The realizing of a Combi brand world
based on the concept of Value.

To create a world where people
can enjoy and feel happy about baby care.

Brand Mission

Brand Value

The role which the Combi brand must
fulfill in order to realize its Vision.

The value which the Combi brand promises and delivers to
customers so that Combi can accomplish its Mission.
• Functional value (to the childcare-giver)

To share the joy of baby care
with everyone.

Combi baby products are "Helping Hands"
to support those who take part in baby care.
• Emotional value (from the childcare-giver)

A Mother's (baby carer's) Natural Smile.

Incorporating our mind into the brand
We endeavor to have all employees share the same brand vision, through such initiatives as hosting an annual Brand Day
and distributing the Brand Book, and we conduct activities to help attract all the stakeholders including the customers,
shareholders and employees to become Combi's fans.
These efforts at enhancing brand value also support the development of products whose foremost priority lies in user
convenience and safety.

5
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Global business development

1

Combi (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
Marketing in China

1
2
3

2

Ningbo Combi Baby Goods Co., Ltd.

5
4

Production

3

Dong Guan Combi Stroller & Toys Co., Ltd.
Production

Global business activities
With its core juvenile product business, Combi has established a strong presence in the domestic market and is
widely acknowledged to be the leading company in this
field. Supported by its strong brand name and innovative
product development capabilities, Combi established
Combi International Corporation in Illinois, U.S.A. in 1989
as a stepping-stone to full-scale global expansion. Today,
we have four overseas marketing companies (refer to the
map) that support our growth in the North American and
Asian markets.
Concurrently on the production side, we have pursued a
global development based on our fundamental strategy of
producing at optimal global sites. In 1992, we began
manufacture of strollers, our core product, in China
(Shenzhen). Subsequently in 1997, we transferred it to
the newly-established, wholly-owned factory in the
Guangdong Province (city of Dong Guan), China. We also

6

began production of high chairs at our factory in the
Zhejiang Province (city of Ningbo) and today, we
manufacture almost all of our strollers and high chairs for
the Japanese market at our Chinese factories.

Target markets
We plan on concentrating sales for the time being in the
two key markets: North America and Asia.
In the North American market, we implemented a drastic organizational reform in October 2003. Specifically, we
appointed a new President (an expert in the U.S. baby
care business) for the local marketing company, transferred offices to maintain low-cost operations and
renamed the company Combi USA, Inc. We believe these
initiatives will enable us to expand distribution channels
and product lineups, thereby achieving a surge in sales.
In the Asian markets, we will make use of our marketing
strategy fostered in Japan to proactively open Combi
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4

Combi Asia Limited
Marketing and production control
in South East Asia

6

6

Combi USA, Inc.
Marketing in North America

5

Combi (Taiwan) Co., Ltd.
Marketing in Taiwan

corners in shops, implement strong strategies to emphasize the Combi brand and expand product lineups to
strengthen our sales base. We will enhance our marketing
activities especially in the coastal areas of China, where
major consumer markets are located, in addition to
Taiwan, where the use of child car seats was enacted
mandatory in June 2004.

Overseas business activities going forward

product group due to differences in living customs and climates. Combi has aspired to identify standards and customer needs unique to each market and provide products
that properly offer the necessary specifications. Going
forward, we will continue not only to accommodate to
individual market needs but also to pursue the development of "global products" that share common functions
and specifications, to increase operating efficiency and
expand sales. We also plan on launching high value-added
products (currently available only in Japan) in overseas
markets to strengthen our overall global business.
On the production side, we have been cutting costs by
procuring manufacturing parts internally and improving
operating efficiency. Combi will continue promoting selfsufficiency aimed at reducing operating costs and
enhancing the Company's cost competitiveness.

In the overseas markets, product standards and specifications vary depending on each region, even for the same

7
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Environmental efforts
Combi's environmental policy
Status of ISO 14001
Certifications at the Combi
Group
December 1998

Saitama Factory (first in baby
care industry)

December 2000

Combi Cha Cha Corporation
(currently CombiWith Corp.)

March 2002

Minami-Urawa Techno-Center

February 2003

Combi Wellness Corporation

Fiscal 2006

Consolidated certification of all
Combi Group companies in
Japan (planned)
Preparatory works commenced
in October 2004.
Operation started in April
2005 to obtain consolidated
certification in the fall of
2005.

Combi established its "Environmental Policy" in October 2004. Its "Basic
Philosophy" is for Combi as an enterprise to create healthy and affluent family
lifestyles, to strive to harmonize itself with the natural environment in the course
of all of its business activities and to contribute to the handover of the priceless
global environment to future generations. In order to realize these objectives, we
uphold the "Action Guidelines" which are made up of five articles.

Footsteps as the forerunner in the baby care industry
In 1998, Combi was certified ISO 14001 at its Saitama Factory, the first ever in
Japan's baby care industry, and has since led the industry in efforts to protect the
global environment. Subsequently, as the company spread this know-how across
its other offices and Group companies, Combi Cha Cha Corporation (currently
CombiWith Corporation), Minami-Urawa Techno-Center and Combi Wellness
Corporation were ISO 14001 certified in 2000, 2002 and 2003, respectively.
Combi also offers its business partners consulting services on acquisition of this
certification.

Future efforts
We are currently moving ahead with our preparations for a consolidated ISO
14001 certification that will cover all our domestic sites, targeted for the fall of
2005. Furthermore, with the aim of realizing our Environmental Policy, we will continue to make consistent efforts to reduce environmental risks, encompassing all
processes including development, production and logistics.

Environmental Policy
−−−Basic Philosophy−−−
Based on its corporate stance of being a partner that supports baby carers
and promoting the wonderful experience of baby care, Combi as an enterprise
creating healthy and affluent family lifestyles, will strive to harmonize with the
natural environment in the course of all of its business activities, and contribute
to the handover of the priceless global environment to future generations.

−−−Action Guidelines−−−

Combi Eco Label (Eco Label TypeⅡ)

1. We will verify the environmental impacts of all of our business activities,
encompassing development, production, logistics and sales, and will ensure
continuous improvements.
2. We will perform product assessments, and will endeavor to offer
environment-friendly and safe products.
3. We will conduct environmental education and training, and each and every
one of us at every workplace will strive to promote resource saving and
energy conservation.
4. We will comply with environmental laws and regulations, and will act as a
good corporate citizen.
5. We will disclose our environmental initiatives in a proper manner, and will
endeavor to maintain a favorable communication with the society.

2010
October 19, 2004
Hiromasa Matsuura, President

Combi Corporation "Environmental Policy" (Established: October 2004)

8
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Combi group

JUVENILE
PRODUCT
BUSINESS
Development, production and
marketing of baby care products

TOY
BUSINESS

CHILD WEAR
BUSINESS
Development, production and
marketing of baby wear

Strollers/High chairs

Development, production and
marketing of toys for infants
and toddlers aged 0 to 3

Child car seats/Nursing products

Toys for the newborn/Play gym

Baby underwear/Baby bedding

Baby tableware/Skin care products

Rattles and teethers/Training toys

Bed accessories

Baby carriers/Baby shoes

Take-along toys/Intellectual stimulation
toys

Baby wear/Maternity wear

G LO B A L B U S I N E SS

10

Marketing for North America

Marketing for China

Marketing for Taiwan

Combi USA,
Inc.

Combi (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd.

Combi（Taiwan）
Co., Ltd.

U.S.A.

China(Shanghai)

Taiwan
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CHILDCARE
ENVIRONMENT FUNCTIONAL
SUPPORT
FOODS
BUSINESS
BUSINESS
CombiWith Corporation
Equipment and environment support services for
going out with children/Childcare business
Proposals for baby resting rooms/Playrooms for
infants
Washroom facilities (Baby rests/Diaper changing
stations/Multi-purpose beds)

Development, production and
marketing of functional foods

FITNESS AND
HEALTHCARE
BUSINESS
Combi Wellness Corporation

Sterilized lactic acid bacterium "EC-12"

Development, production and marketing
of health-related products

E.F. Power/Oxykine

Fitness equipment (AEROBIKE/Motorcise)

Collocalia

Bathing support products
Carts for seniors

Facility/Store-use strollers/Nursery school operations

Wooden portable toilets

Daycare and baby-sitting services

Marketing and production
control for Southeast Asia

Manufacturing subsidiaries

Combi Asia
Limited

Dong Guan Combi
Stroller & Toys Co., Ltd.

Ningbo Combi
Baby Goods Co., Ltd.

Hong Kong

China(Dong Guan)

China(Ningbo)

11
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Juvenile product business

JUVENILE

Ever since the start of business in 1961, Combi has won the confidence of its customers by identifying customer needs constantly and
accurately and by offering innovative and safe products and services.
From the Swan potty in the 1960s to Do Kids 5, a multi-purpose
stroller developed in 2004 that offers five functions including a baby
car seat to a second-phase stroller in one, and then to the Cocot
Compact series, a very compactly collapsible new stroller launched in
2005 with abundant features to enhance comfort for babies, Combi
has been effective in applying its technological expertise accumulated
during its continued efforts over the years. As an all-round manufacturer of childcare products Combi has always supported and protected safe, secure, enjoyable and comfortable childcare products and
services.

Market climate
Affected by Japan’s low birthrate and a growing population of senior citizens,
the baby care products market in Japan today remains relatively flat to slightly
decreasing (the annual number of births was about 1.1 million and is on the
decline). While consumers are becoming increasingly individual and selective
amid a growing diversity in lifestyles, they are more cost conscious and tend to
purchase items that offer a longer useful life.
Be that as it may, there has been no remarkable change in the level of expenditure made by families on each child and consumers are clearly willing to purchase the most expensive products, as long as the items offer good value and
quality. As a top supplier of baby care products, the Combi Group is keenly
aware of such consumer trends and continues to provide customers with high
value-added, advanced and forward-looking products and services.

Business activities and performance for Fiscal 2005

12

The major change in product configuration of strollers, from that of predominantly A-type and B-type strollers, to that of integrated dual-type strollers caused
new purchases to decline, while market competition continued to mount. As a
result, sales of strollers, Combi’s flagship product, declined slightly from the previous fiscal year.
In the child car seats market, although the percentage of babies and infants
using child car seats declined from the previous year, the Company managed to
maintain its No. 1 market share as sales and marketing efforts proved effective.
Combi’s sales in this category surpassed those of the previous fiscal year, mainly
riding on the strength of the popularity of newly launched products such as Prim
Long, which won the Good Design Award as a product that meets consumer
needs for long-term and single-product availability for infants and children up to
7 years of age, as well as Buon Kids, the first ever product in the junior car seats
category that holds a child safely by a seat belt.
We are pleased with the great popularity of
baby racks that can serve both as a baby bed
and as a high chair for indoor use. The product has continued to occupy a large market
share.
In the small-to-medium size product lines,
sales of nursing-related products remained
stagnant due to a fall in the number of baby
care products placed in drug stores, but
Combi stepped up its sales efforts with
renewed product designs. Overall sales in this
category remained strong, aided by robust
sales of Training Chopsticks, launched as part
Baby Soft Carrier Ninna Nanna F-180
of our Baby Label series that came with substantially amended designs, and of Baby Soft
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PRODUCT

Carrier Ninna Nanna F-180, the first baby carrier ever to win the Gold Prize of the Good
Design Award.
As a result, net sales from our juvenile product business for Fiscal 2005 amounted to
¥17,224 million, down 1.3% from those of the previous fiscal year.

Fiscal 2006 and medium-term projections
･Strollers
The dramatic market upheaval brought about by the emergence of integrated dual-type
strollers in 2002 has already settled, and we anticipate no major change in the product
composition in the market for the time being. Combi therefore aims to increase sales of
strollers in Fiscal 2006 by reinforcing its development system and expanding new product
lineups.
Cocot Compact
･High chairs
W EG α
With Roanju, we will launch a new product in the High chairs category for the first time in
eight years. We will seek to expand sales of this new product by responding to customer needs with the
new concept of a "childcare station" that can cope with all forms of indoor childcare.
･Widening target ages and penetrating the maternity market
Combi's products are mainly designed for newborns and infants up to the age of around two and their
families. We plan on developing new products for a wider age group of children. In addition, we will be
launching maternity product series for expectant mothers.
･Skin care
We will enhance our skin care product lineups by launching Atopi Mate (Skin care for baby), a new ricebased skin care series that provides atopic and dry skin with a high water retention capability.
･Our first-class childcare website: Combi Town (http://www.combibaby.com/)
We value close communication with our customers, as it leads to supporting all family members who can
share the joy and excitement of childcare. Currently, we supply subscribing customers with product information as well as tips on childcare, types of childcare and storefront events. We will continue to keep an
open ear for comments and requests from our customers, welcome additional Combi fans, and make
efforts to satisfy customers by promoting good communication.
･Marketing and sales strategies
In addition to developing advanced products, we will actively promote PR activities via advertisements,
various media and storefront sales campaigns. In today's distribution
industry marked by dramatic curtailment and realignments, we will also
strengthen ties with leading stores and agents, as well as striving to maintain and expand our marketing channels. With our leading sales stores, by
implementing differentiating product and marketing strategies according to
business segments, we will avoid unnecessary price competition and
establish a constructive sales environment that will enable us to pursue
Juvenile product business: NET SALES
effective area marketing for greater sales and profitability.
(Millions of yen)

19,021
17,449

17,224

FY 2004

FY 2005

Roanju

FY 2003
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Toy business
Our toy business offers a wide variety of safe toys that can serve as
valuable partners for children, from a baby's first playthings to educational toys that foster the child's intellectual growth. Based on our
concept of introducing toys that make children happy and enhance
their minds and bodies while promoting good interaction between
parents and babies, we conduct research on the monthly growth of
children. This is how we can offer our well-developed product lines
that properly accommodate each growth stage to promote the intellectual, mental and emotional growth of children. We have earned a
good reputation among mothers, especially for products such as
Merry, Play Gym and Rattle, all of which reflect Combi's expertise in
baby care products.

Market climate
The domestic toy market as a whole remains depressed due to the shrinking
size of the market caused by the declining birthrate, the economy's deflationary trend and the absence of successful products. Meanwhile, toy figures and
toy snacks are being actively sold through mail order and convenience stores,
and their distribution scale is expanding rapidly. As a result, in the general toy
sector, even more wholesalers and retailers than last year have been driven out
of business or forced to merge with toy manufacturers.
In this testing market environment, it is growing more important than ever to
provide customers with high-quality products and services. Among the toys for
infants and toddlers, educational toys are drawing increasing interest from parents and are selling solidly. In particular, wooden educational toys gained popularity and displayed a double-digit sales growth last year.

Business activities and performance for
Fiscal 2005

14

Combi's toys, as child care products taking advantage
of the high brand strength of the Company as an allround manufacturer of baby care products, transcend
the conventional concept of toys and enjoy high market recognition.
Combi has always placed top priority on the safety
of babies as users of its products, and has developed
them by setting safety standards that are more stringent than the ST (safety toy) standard for toys. For
example, we have introduced such ingenuities as
designs without sharp edges and soft-to-the-touch
cloth toys.
In addition, for the Akachan Omoi rattle series
developed on the basis of careful studies of the
growth process of babies from mothers' caring perspectives, we have standardized products both with and without internal
coatings, and have offered them as
stepped-up training toys so that mothers who are concerned about their
babies' natural tendency to pass their
tongues over any material within their
reach may give the toys to their babies
with a sense of security.
Also, the From Mama series, which
was developed from mothers' direct
requests, incorporates numerous ideas
that only those personally raising children can offer, and has gained populari-

Koro Koro Tree 2

Busy Big Box
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TOY

ty since its launch in the fall of 2004.
Furthermore, at the end of March 2005, we launched the new Magnet Block Land series targeted for
infants who are 1.5 years or older. This series is a collection of wooden bricks that includes the good features of both wooden bricks and blocks. The product is being marketed as one with which children can
expect to widen the depth and width of their play, by experiencing the features of "sticking together,"
"glowing," "revolving," "chiming," "moving," "running" and, in the process, develop their physical and mental capacities in a joyful manner.
While severe market conditions affected sales during the first half-year of Fiscal 2005, the Intellectual
Exploration series sold robustly during the second-half of the year, particularly during the year-end sales
battle. Among others, new products such as the "Busy Big Box" and "Multiple Tone" helped to boost overall toy sales and partly made up for the negative sales performance experienced during the first half of
the year. As a result, net sales from the toy business for Fiscal 2005 increased 2.7% year on year to
¥1,883 million.

Prospects for Fiscal 2006
Combi will strive to reinforce its strong business segment of baby toys with new products such as the
Akachan Omoi and the From Mama series, market
our products with a concept that would be in line
with mothers' lifestyles, and improve brand loyalty. In conjunction with this, we will place top priority on enhancing our return on sales, pursue
new business opportunities, cultivate new marketing channels and develop new toy categories
in collaboration with operators in other business
sectors.

Magnet Block Land

Toy business: NET SALES
(Millions of yen)

2,241

FY 2003

1,833

1,883

FY 2004

FY 2005

15

combi E 2005 p1-p24.qxd 05.9.12 10:45 ページ16

Child wear business

CHILD

Based on its fundamental concept of introducing child wear that
brightens the smile on a baby's face, Combi established the Combi
Mini brand in fall 2000 and entered the child wear market mainly
through catalog shopping. Combi's functional child wear represented
by Wrap Crotch and its reasonable pricing have put the Company
ahead of its peers offering only traditional child wear. As a result, the
Combi Mini branch has established itself well in the child wear industry, which had been known to lack key brands.
While it was a new attempt for the Company to explore the catalog
shopping business, Combi strived to reflect user needs quickly and
surely on products developed by promoting direct interactions with
its customers. As a result of our continuous efforts, we succeeded in
realizing a remarkable increase in net sales to ¥3.6 billion for Fiscal
2005 from ¥500 million posted at the start of this business in 2001.

Market climate
The overall size of the apparel market for children up to 12 years of age is estimated to stand at ¥720 billion, of which ¥125 billion accounts for clothes for
infants and toddlers between the ages of 0 and 3, with ¥30 billion accounting
for newborns only (estimates by Combi). In the child wear industry, even the
top suppliers offering multiple brands hold low market shares ranging only
between 4% and 5%. In particular, no major brand exists in the baby wear
segment, and customers tend to value price over brand. In this market environment, Combi Mini maintains a market share of approximately 2.4% in apparel
for children between the ages of 0 and 3, and Combi's share continues to rise
favorably.

Business activities and performance for Fiscal 2005
In October 2004, Combi successfully obtained a patent on Wrap Crotch, the clothing for newborns, whose
slip-on feature made it possible for parents to substantially avoid the hassle associated with diaperchanging. It is known to be extremely difficult for a baby clothing product to be patented, as patents typically require the product to possess novelty, originality and industrial usefulness. According to Combi's
survey, only 11 patents (including Wrap Crotch) have been registered from the baby wear category over
the past 30 years, and Wrap Crotch represents the
sole baby wear whose patent rights are being currently and validly managed.
On the occasion of Wrap Crotch being patented, we
waged a Wrap Crotch sales campaign, and expanded
the Wrap Family series to include Wrap Compact and
Wrap Pants. In December 2004, we employed the
services of Chiaki (Chiaki Fujimoto as designer), an
on-screen entertainer, to start up the new brand of
Ribbon Casket. The Wrap Family series has since been
selling favorably.
Combi's child wear business is operated only
through catalog sales in order to ensure that the
product functionality and concept will be communicated accurately to our customers. We are pleased to
be able to satisfy a number of customers by delivering baby wear in time for the new season and to suit
customer needs regarding function and design. As a
result of these efforts, the MelMama Club, a membership organization of Combi Mini, registered 320,000
Wrap Crotch
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WEAR

members as of the end of March 2005 (260,000 as of the end of March 2004), and net sales for Fiscal
2005 amounted to ¥3,565 million, up 18.6% from those of the previous fiscal year.

Fiscal 2005 and medium-term projections
During Fiscal 2005, 35% of orders were received via the internet and mobile phone sites. We will aim to
increase orders through e-commerce and further improve our operating efficiency in Fiscal 2006 by
enhancing the exclusive e-shop service that started in September 2004 and our online information delivery.
Four years have passed since Combi started up its child wear business, and we are now beginning to
tackle the challenges of the next stage by building new brands, putting catalog sales business on a firm
footing, and launching an e-business. Looking forward, we will endeavor to widen our business targets by
developing new product categories and expand our child wear business to support not only babies but
also other family members. We believe these initiatives will help us achieve further penetration of the
Combi Mini brand.

Child wear business: NET SALES
(Millions of yen)

Ribbon Casket

3,565
3,005

2,202

FY 2003

FY 2004

FY 2005
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Childcare environment support business

CHILDCARE

Combi's childcare environment support business started with the
objective of developing products that support mothers and their
babies as they go out together. Today, we offer both the product
(hardware) and the related support for children (software), focusing
on two key segments: the support business for infant care installations and the nursery business. Baby Rest, a baby rest for infants and
toddlers which initially was equipped only in women's rest rooms, is
now commonly available in men's rest rooms as well. As the number
of working mothers with small children grow, the number of children
on the waiting list to enter nursery daycare centers has increased,
which is now a major social issue. The regionally-authorized high-quality nurseries operated by CombiWith receive high recognition from
various interested parties.
Combi's childcare environment support business addresses childraising needs arising from changing lifestyles in various ways.

Market climate
As part of the Japanese government's measures to halt
the falling birthrate, various
proposals for next-generation rearing support are
currently being reviewed.
State recommendations
cover a wide spectrum of
activities, including the
development of a society in which both men and
women can equally participate, regional childcare support, social insurance and education. Some concrete
measures have already been implemented, such as
outsourcing public nursery services to private facilities. At the same time, the changing working methods of men and women are causing an increased
need for babysitters. We are of the view that these
developments, as well as the government measures,
will offer great opportunities for Combi to expand its
nursery business.
Baby Rest

Business activities and performance for
Fiscal 2005

18

･Support business for infant care installations
In the support business for infant care installations,
Combi has been promoting the use of Diaper
Changing Stations at public restrooms, and Baby Rest
to allow parents to enter private restrooms with their
children, as well as baby resting rooms and playrooms
for infants. Angel Cart, our stroller providing great
convenience for parents when going out shopping
with babies, has been well received in various commercial facilities.
In Fiscal 2005, market demand for Combi products
rose as a result of various measures taken in conjunction with the proposed Next-Generation Rearing
Support Law. In particular, we were able to boost
sales of baby resting rooms and playrooms for
infants. Orders received from large-scale facilities
such as Central Japan International Airport and Expo
2005 Aichi also contributed to our sales increase.
Angel Cart
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ENVIRONMENT
･Nursery business
In the nursery business, Combi operates a total of 12 regionally-authorized and state-authorized nursery
daycare centers (as of the end of May 2005) going under the name of Combi Plaza, and simultaneously
offers baby-sitting and daycare services. We have run this business to maintain high-quality childcare
services by paying close attention to the environment of the facilities, and to the training and education
of childnurses.
Currently, there are approximately 40,000 public and private nursery daycare centers in Japan, roughly
20,000 of which have been authorized by the Ministry of Health, Labor and Welfare. By means of administrative measures, an increasing number of these public nursery daycare centers are being privatized
nationwide.
Amid these developments, in Fiscal 2005, Combi was commissioned to operate one of Tokyo metropolitan's government-run nursery daycare centers. We take pride in the fact that Combi Plaza's high-quality
childcare services have been recognized by the local public body/administrative organizations.
As a result of the foregoing, net sales from our environment support business for Fiscal 2005 increased
substantially by 29% to ¥1,863 million from ¥1,444 million of the previous fiscal year.

Prospects for Fiscal 2006
In order to remove real and latent barriers against child-rearing that currently exist in commercial and
other facilities, Combi will explore new product segments while striving to further enhance the quality of
its support business for infant care installations.
In our nursery business, we will continue to offer high-quality child-rearing and pursue opportunities of
outsourcing operations from state/locally-authorized private nurseries and public nursery daycare centers,
so that we may serve and support a greater number of
people.

Soft Animal Set (for nursery institutions)

Childcare environment support business:

NET SALES
(Millions of yen)

1,863

1,444
1,232

Combi Plaza
FY 2003

FY 2004

FY 2005
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Functional foods business

FUNCTIONAL

Based on our concept of supporting healthy living for all family members, we offer recommendations on food, the basis of wholesome living. Combi works together with universities and research institutions
to conduct research on immunity enhancement, anti-oxidation and
anti-corpulence aimed at the development of food ingredients and
functional foods based on scientific data.
Focusing on the prevention of life-style related diseases, we aim to
contribute to our society by improving the quality of life by offering
safe and secure food ingredients and products.

Market climate
The overall health food market is expanding, prompted by the emergence of
new categories of products including Kao's Healthia and Kirin's KW Lactic Acid
Bacterium. Effective new product planning can lead to a further expansion of
the market which is known as one of the very few growth areas amid the country's stagnant economy. For this reason, major companies which did not previously handle health foods have begun entering this market, one after another,
in pursuit of new business opportunities, consequently driving the market into
a state of severe competition. Meanwhile, the market seems likely to undergo a
major structural change as it will be placed under a tighter regulatory framework as a result of amendments to food-related laws and regulations including
the Health Promotion Law, the Food Sanitation Law and the Law for Preventing
Unjustifiable Gifts and Misleading Representation.

Business activities and performance for Fiscal 2005
The sterilized lactic acid bacterium EC-12, which has been well analyzed and
proven for its high soothing effect on the intestines and promoting effect on immunity, is now being
introduced to not only health foods but also general foods. EC-12 was found to remove anti-microbial
resistance in livestock and we have begun selling feed-use EC-12 as a new application.
As a result of stockbreeding that depended heavily on antibiotics, an increasing number of livestock
have come to carry drug-resistance strains of bacteria inside their bodies and are threatening food safety. By applying immunized lactic acid bacterium EC-12 to feedstuff, livestock breeders can now expect to
conduct antibiotics-free stockbreeding. Combi is promoting sales of EC-12 to major livestock farms and
feed suppliers in collaboration with Kanematsu Corporation, and should be able to contribute more to
food safety.
OXYKINE, which has been proven to be highly effective in eliminating active oxygen, restraining cancer
metastases, remedying diabetic complications and restraining rheumatic symptoms, is also being applied
as a raw material for anti-oxidative food products as well as edible cosmetics serving to control aging of
the skin.

EC-12
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FOODS

Be-Quarter, the dieting-use functional food (jello-type) that
Combi had handled until the previous fiscal year was discontinued in the interest of concentrating management resources
elsewhere. However, Combi Wellness Corporation, our affiliate
company, is selling its tablet versions to individual customers.

Medium term projections
Combi, in pursuing this business, is highly original and outperforms competitors by using only materials deemed to be safe
based on scientific data.
Based on the concept of maintaining healthy lifestyles for all
family members, we hope to advance in the optimal functional
foods market, an environment marked by growing public interest
in wholesome living, and launch products that offer greater
security and comfort.
Functional foods business is still in a progressing stage, so we
will continue pursuing the above-mentioned direction and aim
for stable business growth as a unique and high value-added
area by further developing OEM products and aggressively proposing application to general foods.

Collocalia

Hoyactive
コロカリア顆粒

Functional foods business: NET SALES
(Millions of yen)

OXYKINE
273
245
208

FY 2003

FY 2004

FY 2005
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Fitness and
healthcare business

FITNESS

Combi's fitness and healthcare business is built on two pillars: the fitness business focusing on AEROBIKE and the healthcare business providing nursing care products such as wooden portable toilets and
carts for elders. We hope to contribute to the realization of an affluent society by offering human-friendly quality to people across the
world who desire to lead an active and wholesome life. We will also
strive to drive value-creating development activities, and aim to be a
business organization dedicated to enhancing high-value added product lineups and offering services with originality so that people may
live comfortably.

Market climate
In the fitness facilities market, the number of new private fitness club openings
has been increasing, albeit modestly. At public facilities, health-promoting
efforts have percolated gradually as Kenko Nippon 21 (a 21st century movement for promoting health in Japan) proposed by the Ministry of Health, Labor
and Welfare began taking root and the Health Promotion Law was put into
force. In the personal fitness market, personal health-promoting initiatives
involving fitness equipment at individual homes have been on a mildly declining
trend, whereas uses of nutritional supplements and relaxation methods are
gaining popularity.
In the healthcare market, nursing care insurance is being overhauled, and a
new field of "preventive nursing care" is expected to be introduced and established with effect from April 2006. Under this system, physical training for elderly people will be promoted, and a major expansion of the market is forecasted. At the same time, there is certain concern that the markets for currently
purchased items such as portable toilets and bathing-related products may be adversely affected.

Business activities and performance for Fiscal 2005
Amid this environment, we have focused on fitness and healthcare businesses while advancing our
research initiatives through our Combi Wellness Academy in collaboration with academic institutions, to
utilize our research results in helping our customers attain a healthy physical constitution.
In the fitness facilities segment, we have successfully developed a new and unique system of health
management and health promotion by utilizing consortia with universities and local public authorities. We
have also established WellnessNet, our flexibly configurable IT-based fitness history management system,
for our customers.
In the household fitness segment, although sales of AEROBIKE ai and AEROBIKE EZ101 for personal use
showed a modestly declining trend, the kinetic pants developed as a new product category sold robustly.
Elsewhere, we commenced TV-based marketing through the TV shopping channel, and have generated
favorable results with sales of Be-Quarter Slim Comprime, our
dieting supplements.
Combi Carry
As a result, net sales from our fitness business for Fiscal 2005
Throughne Hi
amounted to roughly the same as those of the previous year.
In our healthcare business, our efforts at organizing "Iki Iki
Kenko Plaza," the network aimed at care managers, have begun
paying off as a structure for efficient introduction of our products
and presentation of our business proposals was well placed and
accepted. We also launched Combi Carry Throughne, the cart
series for elderly people with features to override bumps, which is
well accepted by our customers. However, amid moves towards
preventive nursing care in the wake of amendments in nursing
care insurance schemes, sales of wooden portable toilets, our
flagship product, remained sluggish, causing sales from healthcare
business to fall short of the previous fiscal year.
As a result, net sales from fitness and healthcare business for
Fiscal 2005 amounted to ¥2,895 million, down 1.8% from those
of the previous fiscal year.
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A N D H E A LT H C A R E
Fiscal 2006 and medium-term projections

Our fitness business is expected to show a modestly expanding trend in
line with Japan's steady inclination towards health promotion. With the
fitness facilities segment, we plan to make system proposals mainly
through WellnessNet, and will aim to move towards high value-added
business. With the personal fitness segment, we will focus on expanding
our business by utilizing the TV shopping channel and by reinforcing our
marketing capabilities.
In our healthcare business, we will reinforce our new product lineups
and respond to the needs of the aging society by strengthening coordination with care managers and nursing care stores. At the same time,
bearing in mind the upcoming overhaul in 2006 of the nursing care insurance scheme, we will strive to invigorate our moves towards the field of
preventive nursing care.

AeroWalker Light

AEROBIKE 900U

Fitness and healthcare business:

NET SALES
(Millions of yen)

2,846

FY 2003

2,947

FY 2004

2,895

FY 2005
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FINANCIAL SECTION
Consolidated 5-year summary
Combi Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries
Years ended March 31

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2005

¥28,084
15,373
12,711
9,812
2,898
1,446

¥28,571
16,011
12,559
10,437
2,122
605

¥29,643
16,128
13,514
11,480
2,034
877

¥28,824
15,473
13,351
11,791
1,559
861

¥30,149
16,299
13,850
12,209
1,640
1,513

$280,751
151,776
128,975
113,695
15,279
14,094

¥14,714
26,465

¥15,379
27,296

¥15,610
27,116

¥15,723
26,430

¥16,776
28,516

$156,223
265,542

¥ 80.52
819.36
20.00

¥ 33.71
856.42
17.00

¥ 47.80
868.23
25.00

¥ 47.18
874.87
20.00

¥ 84.30
934.35
20.00

$

¥25,375
2,709
¥28,084

¥25,372
3,198
¥28,571

¥26,589
3,053
¥29,643

¥25,604
3,220
¥28,824

¥27,009
3,140
¥30,149

$251,510
29,241
$280,751

¥26,602
443
1,038
¥28,084

¥26,890
812
867
¥28,571

¥27,889
912
841
¥29,643

¥26,826
1,318
679
¥28,824

¥27,750
1,426
972
¥30,149

$258,413
13,284
9,054
$280,751

Fiscal Year
Net Sales
Cost of Sales
Gross profit
Selling, General and Administrative Expense
Operating income
Net income

As at the End of the Fiscal Year
Total shareholders' equity
Total assets

Per share data (Yen and U.S. dollar)
Net income
Total shareholders' equity
Dividends paid

0.78
8.70
0.18

Sales by business segment
Baby Care Products and Toys
Health Care Products
Total

Sales by geographical segment
(excluding intersegment sales)
Japan
Asia
North America
Total

Notes:
1. Figures for per share data have been computed based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the fiscal year.
2. Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the exchange rate of US$1=¥107.39 as of March 31, 2005.

The figures provided for in the above summary and the financial statements (including Notes) available in this annual report are in principle indicated in millions of yen or
thousands of U.S. dollars after omitting amounts below one million and one thousand, respectively.
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Financial review
Summary of income and expenses
Although private-sector capital expenditures rebounded due to
favorable exports, personal consumption remained stagnant.
While the general business conditions fell short of a full recovery
in fiscal year ended March 2005, the Combi Group focused on
developing and marketing high value-added and innovative childcare services and on rationalizing costs.
Both sales and income from our baby care products (including
strollers, child car seats and baby racks), representing our core
business, displayed year-on-year increases as sales of high
value-added products grew in Japan and overseas, particularly in
Taiwan where child car seats became mandatory. Baby wear also
performed favorably, boosted by new brand start-ups. In contrast, Fiscal 2005 was an uphill battle for our health-related
business due to its slow sales to fitness facilities and resutled in
reduced sales and operating loss.
On the overseas front, our joint-venture subsidiary in Taiwan
came up with increased sales and income, and our manufacturing subsidiary in China is also steadily streamlining its operating
costs.
As a result, for the consolidated fiscal year under review, net
sales amounted to ¥30,149 million, up 4.6% from those of the
previous year, operating income increased 5.2% year on year to
¥1,640 million, and net income soared 75.8% year on year to
reach ¥1,513 million.

Financial position
Current assets as of the end of the consolidated fiscal year
under review increased by ¥2,404 million to ¥20,470 million,
reflecting increases in cash and deposits while fixed assets
decreased by ¥318 million to ¥8,045 million.
Current liabilities declined by ¥789 million to ¥7,727 million
due to redemptions of corporate bonds totaling ¥1,000 million,
while long-term liabilities increased by ¥1,796 million to ¥3,984
million due to the issuance of unsecured straight bonds totaling
¥2,000 million. As a result, total liabilities increased by ¥1,007
million to ¥11,711 million.
Total capital stood at ¥16,776 million, up ¥1,053 million, year
on year due to building up of retained earnings. Total assets
including debts rose by ¥2,085 million to ¥28,516 million.

Net sales/Operating income to net sales ratio

Cash flows
Cash and cash equivalents for the consolidated fiscal year under
review (hereafter referred to as "funds") totaled 4,730 million,
up ¥1,250 million from a year earlier.
Breakdown of cash flows indicates that operating activities
provided net funds worth ¥1,456 million, up ¥1,424 million from
the previous fiscal year. This result mainly reflected a year-onyear increase of ¥20 million in net income before tax
adjustments to ¥1,381 million and an increase of ¥71 million in
depreciation expenses to ¥620 million, a year-on-year decrease
of ¥839 million in payment of corporate taxes worth ¥300
million and an increase of ¥523 million, down ¥44 million year
on year, in inventory assets from a year earlier.
Net funds from investing activities were ¥645 million, down
¥725 million from the previous year, mainly as a result of
acquisition of fixed assets worth ¥713 million, down ¥214
million from the previous year, including investments in nursery
schools, molds of our foreign subsidiaries and information
systems.
Funds acquired from financing activities totaled ¥469 million,
as compared to funds of ¥426 million used for the previous
year', primarily due to ¥361 million paid in dividends, down ¥89
million year on year, and ¥1,000 million in funds increased
following offset of bond issuance and redemptions.

Shareholders' equity ratio

Return on equity

(Millions of yen)
％ ％
29,643
30,149 15 15
30,000
28,571
28,824
28,084

20,000

Consequently, the equity ratio deteriorated slightly from the
previous year's 59.5% to 58.8%.
Distributing profits to our shareholders in a stable manner in
accordance with business results is one of the important
corporate priorities of the Combi Group. We distributed
dividends of ¥20 per share for the full year, inclusive of an
interim dividend of ¥10.

10.3
10 10

Dividend payout ratio

％
80

％
300

276.0
59.5

60

10.1

55.6

56.3

58.8

7.5

6.9
5.4

5.7

5.4
5

0
FY2001 FY2002 FY2003 FY2004 FY2005

60

40

40

20

20

43.2

47.2

35.5

5.5

5
4.0

0

63.1

57.6

9.3

10,000

(Non-consolidated basis)

0

0
FY2001 FY2002 FY2003 FY2004 FY2005

0

FY2001 FY2002 FY2003 FY2004 FY2005

FY2001 FY2002 FY2003 FY2004 FY2005
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Consolidated financial statements
Consolidated balance sheets
Combi Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries
Years ended March 31

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2004

2005

2005

¥ 18,066

¥ 20,470

$ 190,621

Cash in hand and at banks

3,912

5,112

47,608

Accounts and notes receivable

7,579

8,007

74,566

Marketable securities

1,038

1,057

9,851

Inventories

4,333

4,818

44,866

289

645

6,013

1,008

874

8,144

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Deferred tax assets
Other current assets
Allowance for doubtful accounts

(96)

(46)

(429)

Fixed Assets:

8,363

8,045

74,920

Tangible assets:

5,872

5,859

54,562

2,305

2,272

21,163

Machinery and equipment

289

251

2,342

Molds

200

211

1,971

2,786

2,786

25,945

3

70

660

287

266

2,479

694

665

6,192

Investment and other assets:

1,796

1,521

14,165

Investment in securities

Buildings and structures

Land
Construction in progress
Other fixed assets

Intangible assets:

1,049

974

9,076

Deferred tax assets

45

2

21

Other investments

855

683

6,363

Allowance for doubtful accounts
Total Assets

(153)
¥ 26,430

(139)
¥ 28,516

(1,296)
$ 265,542

Note: Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the exchange rate of US$1=¥107.39 as of March 31, 2005.

The above Consolidated Balance Sheets as well as financial statements (including Notes) in this annual report have not been audited by an independent certified
accountant.
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Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2004

2005

2005

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

¥

8,516

¥

7,727

$

71,953

Accounts and notes payable

3,915

4,159

38,734

Short-term bank loans

1,348

1,230

11,458

Current portion of bonds (due within one year)

1,000

−

−

Accrued expenses

1,391

1,466

13,656

Income taxes payable

41

51

483

Deferred tax liabilities

10

−

−

Accrued bonuses to employees

330

378

3,523

Other current liabilities

478

439

4,097

Long-term Liabilities:

2,187

3,984

37,103

Bonds

1,000

3,000

27,935

56

79

744

Deferred tax liabilities

60

18

168

Accrued retirement benefits for officers

295

290

2,704

Other long-term liabilities

774

596

5,550

10,703

11,711

109,057

3

28

261

2,991

2,991

27,860

Accrued retirement benefits for employees

Total Liabilities
MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST
Minority shareholders' interest

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Capital
Capital surplus
Retained earnings

2,783

2,783

25,921

10,101

11,241

104,680

Variances in securities valuation

40

38

Currency exchange adjustment

(191)

(276)

Treasury stock
Total shareholders' equity
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

(1)

(2)

362
(2,578)
(22)

15,723

16,776

156,223

¥ 26,430

¥ 28,516

$ 265,542

Note: Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the exchange rate of US$1=¥107.39 as of March 31, 2005.
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Consolidated statements of income
Combi Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries
Years ended March 31

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2004

2005

2005

¥ 28,824

¥ 30,149

$ 280,751

Cost of Sales

15,473

16,299

151,776

Gross Profit

13,351

13,850

128,975

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

11,791

12,209

113,695

1,559

1,640

15,279

71

144

1,346

19

22

206

Net Sales

Operating Income
Non-operating Income
Interest income

7

8

82

Commissions received

—

70

653

Insurance-related income

—

15

140

Other income

43

28

263

312

349

3,251

77

76

711

Sales discount

148

151

1,408

Exchange loss

72

12

120

Lease payments

—

60

561

Other expenses

13

48

448

63

60

560

Dividend income

Non-operating Expenses
Interest expenses

Extraordinary Income
Extraordinary Losses
Income Before Income Taxes
Income tax, residential tax and enterprise tax
Income tax adjustments

115

1,072

1,381

12,863

488

140

1,309

11

(298)

(2,783)

0

Minority interest gains
Net Income

20
1,361

¥

861

26
¥

1,513

Note: Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the exchange rate of US$1=¥107.39 as of March 31, 2005.
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Consolidated statements of capital surplus and retained earnings
Combi Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries
Years ended March 31

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2004

2005

2005

Capital Surplus
Capital surplus brought forward
Capital surplus carried forward

¥

2,783

¥

2,783

$ 25,921

2,783

2,783

25,921

9,708

10,101

94,059

861

1,513

14,094

861

1,513

14,094

468

373

3,474

448

359

3,344

19

13

130

¥ 10,101

¥ 11,241

$ 104,680

Retained Earnings
Retained earnings brought forward
Increases in retained earnings:
Net income increases in retained earnings
Decreases in retained earnings:
Cash dividends
Officers' bonuses
Retained earnings carried forward

Note: Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the exchange rate of US$1=¥107.39 as of March 31, 2005.
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Consolidated statements of cash flows
Combi Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries
Years ended March 31

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2004
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Income before income taxes
Depreciation/amortization
Decrease in allowance for doubtful receivables
Increase (decrease) in accrued bonuses to employees
Increase (decrease) in accrued retirement benefits for employees
Increase (decrease) in accrued retirement benefits for officers
Interest and dividend income
Interest expenses
Exchange loss
Profit on sale of securities
Profit from marketable securities
Write-down of investments in securities
Profit on sale of investments in securities
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Loss on sale of fixed assets
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables
Increase in inventories
Decrease (increase) in other trade assets
Increase (decrease) in trade payables
Increase in other operating liabilities
Payment of bonuses to officers
Subtotal
Payment of income taxes
Income and other tax refunds
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest and dividend income received
Increase in time deposits
Decrease in time deposits
Proceeds from sale of securities
Payments for purchase of tangible fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets
Payments for purchase of intangible fixed assets
Payments for purchase of investment securities
Proceeds from sale of investment securities
Payments for other investments
Proceeds from return on other investments
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Payment of interest expenses
Increase in short-term bank loans
Decrease in short-term bank loans
Decrease in long-term bank loans
Income from corporate bonds
Corporate bond redemption costs
Increase in treasury stock
Dividends paid
Net cash provided by financing activities
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period

2005

¥ 1,361
549
(50)
(72)
22
28
(27)
77
17
(0)
—
—
(2)
7
—
332
(567)
(338)
(530)
384
(19)
1,171
(1,139)
—
32

¥ 1,381
620
(64)
47
(42)
(5)
(31)
76
1
—
(0)
2
—
13
(3)
(440)
(523)
455
195
24
(13)
1,694
(300)
62
1,456

$ 12,863
5,776
(596)
445
(397)
(47)
(289)
711
15
—
(6)
22
—
123
(28)
(4,103)
(4,873)
4,237
1,819
231
(130)
15,775
(2,793)
579
13,561

26
(1,863)
1,556
97
(639)
—
(288)
(300)
5
(28)
63
(1,371)

30
(1,656)
1,680
135
(498)
7
(215)
(60)
—
(199)
129
(645)

286
(15,425)
15,652
1,257
(4,646)
71
(2,002)
(561)
—
(1,856)
1,208
(6,015)

(74)
1,414
(1,292)
(22)
—
—
(0)
(451)
(426)
(95)
(1,861)
5,342
¥ 3,480

(58)
1,803
(1,913)
—
2,000
(1,000)
(0)
(361)
469
(29)
1,250
3,480
¥ 4,730

(540)
16,789
(17,820)
—
18,623
(9,311)
(5)
(3,365)
4,368
(272)
11,642
32,410
$ 44,052

Note: Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the exchange rate of US$1=¥107.39 as of March 31, 2005.

30

2005

combi E 2005 p25-40(2C).qxd 05.9.12 10:56 ページ31

Basis for the consolidated financial statements
1. Scope of consolidation
The Company has eight consolidated subsidiaries: Combi Asia Limited, Combi USA, Inc., Combi (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., Dong Guan
Combi Stroller & Toys Co., Ltd., Nimgbo Combi Baby Goods Co., Ltd., Combi (Taiwan) Co., Ltd., CombiWith Corporation, and
Combi Wellness Co., Ltd.
2. Application of equity method
(1) No non-consolidated subsidiaries or affiliates were subject to equity method accounting.
(2) The Company has two affiliates not subject to the equity method is: Success Academy, Co., Ltd. and Be Be Dream Limited.
The above firms are not subject to the equity method because they have only minor impact on the Group’s net income
and consolidated retained earnings, etc., and have no significant influence on the Group’s financial results as a whole.
3. Matters concerning the fiscal periods of consolidated subsidiaries
The fiscal year of consolidated subsidiaries Combi Asia Limited, Combi USA, Inc., Combi (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., Dong Guan Combi
Stroller & Toys Co., Ltd., Ningbo Combi Baby Goods Co., Ltd. and Combi (Taiwan) Co., Ltd. end on December 31 each year.
The accounts of these subsidiaries have been consolidated using the financial statements as of this date, with necessary
adjustments on consolidation for important transactions occurring between the above date and the Company’s consolidated
fiscal year-end.
The accounting closing date of Combi With Corporation and Combi Wellness Corporation coincide with the Company’s
consolidated subsidiaries’ fiscal year-end.
4. Summary of significant accounting principles
(1) Valuation standards and methods for important assets
A. Securities
(a) Held-to-maturity debt securities: stated at amortized cost (straight-line method).
(b) Other securities:
Securities with market quotations: stated at fair value determined by the market value at settlement of account.
(Unrealized gains or losses are recorded in shareholders’ equity. Cost is determined by the moving-average
method.)
Securities without market quotations: stated at cost determined mainly by the moving-average method.
B. Derivatives
Stated at fair value.
C. Inventories
Stated at cost determined mainly by the average cost method.
(2) Depreciation/amortization of important depreciable assets
A. Tangible fixed assets
The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries compute depreciation/amortization on the declining-balance
method, while overseas consolidated subsidiaries use the straight-line method.
Depreciation/amortization expenses for buildings (other than fixtures) of the Company and domestic consolidated
subsidiaries, acquired on or after April 1, 1998, are computed using the straight-line method.
The period of depreciation/amortization for the main tangible fixed assets are as follows:
Buildings: 8-50 years
Machinery and equipment: 5-11 years
B. Intangible fixed assets
The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries compute amortization on the straight-line method.
Amortization of software costs for internal use is computed using the straight-line method based on the useful life of 5
years.
(3) Accounting method of deferred assets
Corporate bond issuing fee
Total amount is accounted as fee at the time of expenditure.
(4) Accounting for allowances
A. Allowance for doubtful accounts
The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries provide for losses on ordinary receivables using the historical
default rate, and provide for losses on specific receivables where there is a possibility of default based on the
estimated amount of uncollectible receivables on an individual basis.
B. Accrued bonuses to employees
To provide for the payment of bonuses to employees, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries make provisions for
the amount of future payments incurred in the consolidated fiscal year.
C. Accrued retirement benefits for employees
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To provide for employees’ retirement benefits, the Company records an amount that is recognized as arising at the end
of the period based on the estimated retirement benefit obligations and value of pension assets at the end of the
fiscal year.
Unrecognized actuarial differences are amortized using the straight-line method over period no longer than the average
remaining service period for employees in service (10 years) at the time the liabilities are incurred. In this case, actuarial
differences are amortized from the following fiscal year this process has been applied.
D. Accrued retirement benefits for officers
To provide for the payment of retirement benefits to directors and executive officers, the Company records an amount
to adequately cover payments at the end of the period, in accordance with internal regulations.
(5) Standards for the conversion of important foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities into yen
Foreign currency-denominated monetary receivables and payables are converted into Japanese yen at the exchange rate
prevailing at the end of the period, with exchange gains and losses recognized in the consolidated statements of income.
The assets and liabilities of overseas subsidiaries are converted into Japanese yen at the exchange rate prevailing at the
end of the fiscal period of the overseas subsidiaries, while revenue and expense accounts are converted at the average
exchange rate during the fiscal year. Gains and losses are included in the “currency exchange adjustment” account in
Minority Shareholders’ Interest and Shareholders’ Equity.
(6) Accounting methods of important lease transactions
The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries account for finance leases, other than those in which ownership
of the leased property is transferred to the lessee, in accordance with standards for ordinary operating leases.
(7) Hedge accounting
A. Hedge accounting
The Company principally applies deferred hedge accounting. When a foreign currency option contract or forward
exchange contract fulfills certain requirements, furiate accounting is applied. (Furiate-shori [accounting]: the current
and forward rate difference is allocated by period length for the calculation at the accounting period)
B. Hedging instruments, hedged items and hedging policy
The Company hedges its exposure to the risk of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and in accordance with
the market risk management regulations of the Company’s internal rules. With regard to the significant risk of
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates on foreign currency-denominated purchase transactions (including
planned transactions), the Company principally hedges no more than 90% of foreign currency transactions due for
settlement within one year, and no more than 70% of foreign currency transactions due over one year.
Followings are the hedging instruments and hedged items that are applied hedge accounting in the fiscal year
concerned:
Hedging instruments: foreign currency option contracts and forward exchange contracts
Hedged items: foreign currency transactions (including planned transactions)
C. Method for measuring hedge effectiveness
In principle, the Company evaluates the effectiveness of its hedging activities by analyzing the ratio of accumulated
gains or losses on the hedging instruments and movement of cash flow, with the related hedged items and movement
of cash flows from the commencement of the hedges. However, the hedge effectiveness is omitted in the case of
forward exchange contracts, etc., where furiate accounting is applied.
(8) Accounting for consumption tax
The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries account for consumption tax using the tax exclusion method.
5. Matters concerning the evaluation of assets and liabilities of consolidated subsidiaries
Assets and liabilities of consolidated subsidiaries are wholly evaluated at the prevailing market prices.
6. Matters concerning the depreciation of consolidated subsidiaries’ adjusted statements of income
There are no such items.
7. Matters concerning the treatment of appropriation of surplus accounts
Consolidated statements of capital surplus and retained earnings are prepared based on consolidated profit appropriations
specified during the consolidated fiscal year.
8. Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of cash flows
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of cash flows are composed of cash on hand, bank deposits able to
be withdrawn on demand, and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less which represent a
minor risk of fluctuation in value.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements
(Millions of yen)

Previous fiscal year (ended March 31, 2004)
1. Accumulated depreciation/amortization on
tangible fixed assets

¥

2. Assets pledged as collateral
Buildings and structures
¥
Land
Current assets and other
Total
Collateralized obligations
Short-term bank loans
Bonds with redemption periods within one year
Bonds
Total

3. Loan guarantees
4. Number of shares outstanding
Common stock
5. Treasury stock
Common stock

¥

Current fiscal year (ended March 31, 2005)
4,411

1,045
1,160
48
2,254

2. Assets pledged as collateral
Buildings and structures
Land
Total
Collateralized obligations
Bonds

¥

4,594

¥

984
783
1,767
1,000

43
1,000
1,000
2,043

31

17,959,158
¥

1. Accumulated depreciation/amortization on
tangible fixed assets

1
(2,598)

3. Loan guarantees
4. Number of shares outstanding
Common stock
5. Treasury stock
Common stock

¥

26

17,959,158
¥

2
(3,424)

6. Main selling, general and administrative expense items:
Freight-out
¥ 1,075
Advertising and promotion
2,132
Bonuses and allowances
3,024
Retirement benefit expenses
223
Provision for employees' bonuses
266
Provision for officers' retirement benefits
27
Depreciation/amortization
294

6. Main selling, general and administrative expense items:
Freight-out
¥ 1,066
Advertising and promotion
2,181
Bonuses and allowances
3,039
Retirement benefit expenses
242
Provision for employees’ bonuses
309
Provision for officers’ retirement benefits
27
Depreciation/amortization
329

7. Research and development expenses to be included
in general and administrative expenses and manufacturing
costs incurred in the period
¥ 1,275

7. Research and development expenses to be included
in general and administrative expenses and manufacturing
costs incurred in the period
¥ 1,419

8. Main extraordinary income
Subsidies
Gains from carryback of doubtful accounts

8. Main extraordinary income
Subsidies
Gains from carryback of doubtful accounts

Main extraordinary losses
Loss on disposal of fixed assets

¥

50
10

17

9. Notes to consolidated statements of cash flows
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents at
end of period with cash items on balance sheet
Cash on hand and in banks
¥ 3,912
Securities
1,038
Total
4,951
Time deposits exceeding three months
(1,335)
Stock investment funds, and bonds with
redemption periods exceeding three months
(135)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
3,480

Main extraordinary losses
Loss on sale of fixed assets
Expenses of autonomous product recall

¥

30
20

14
97

9. Notes to consolidated statements of cash flows
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents at
end of period with cash items on balance sheet
Cash on hand and in banks
¥ 5,112
Securities
1,057
Total
6,170
Time deposits exceeding three months
(1,285)
Stock investment funds, and bonds with
redemption periods exceeding three months
(154)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
4,730
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Segment information
(1) Segment information by industry segment
The following tables show segment information by industry segment for fiscal years ended March 2004 and 2005.
Period

Previous fiscal
year ended
March 31, 2004

Current fiscal
year ended
March 31, 2005

Baby Care
Health Care
Products and Toys
Products

Net sales and operating income (loss)
Net sales
(1) Sales to external customers
(2) Intersegment sales/transfers
Total
Operating expenses
Operating income
Total assets, depreciation/amortization
Total assets
Depreciation/amortization
Capital expenditure
Net sales and operating income (loss)
Net sales
(1) Sales to external customers
(2) Intersegment sales/transfers
Total
Operating expenses
Operating income
Total assets, depreciation/amortization
Total assets
Depreciation/amortization
Capital expenditure

Total

(Millions of yen)

Elimination
Consolidated
and Corporate

¥ 25,604
¥ 3,220
—
—
25,604
3,220
22,450
3,244
3,153
(24)
and capital expenditure
17,993
2,557
289
35
581
28

¥ 28,824
—
28,824
25,695
3,129

—
—
—
1,569
(1,569)

¥ 28,824
—
28,824
27,264
1,559

20,490
324
609

5,940
224
400

26,430
549
1,010

¥ 27,009
¥ 3,140
—
—
27,009
3,140
23,641
3,210
3,368
(70)
and capital expenditure
19,557
2,458
487
42
580
20

¥ 30,149
—
30,149
26,851
3,298

—
—
—
1,657
(1,657)

¥ 30,149
—
30,149
28,509
1,640

22,016
530
601

6,500
89
32

28,516
620
633

Notes:
1. Method for classifying industry segments and main products in each segment:
(1) Industry segments are classified according to the main products handled.
(2) Main products and business in each industry segment
Industry Segment

Main Products and Businesses
Baby care products, strollers, child car seats, nursing products, toys, child-

Baby Care Products and Toys
care products, child wear, management of nursery daycare centers, etc.
Health Care Products

Fitness machines, nursing care products, functional food products, etc.

2. Unallocatable expenses included in “elimination and corporate” under “operating expenses” for fiscal years ended March 2004 and 2005 are ¥1,569 million and
¥1,657 million, respectively, and are mainly comprised of expenses incurred in the Company’s general affairs and personnel, finance, management planning and other
management departments.
3. Corporate assets included in “elimination and corporate” under “total assets” amount to ¥5,948 million and ¥6,509 million, respectively, and are mainly comprised of the
parent company’s investment in surplus funds (cash on hand and in bank, and securities), long-term investment funds (investment in securities) and assets of other
management departments.
4. Depreciation/amortization and capital expenditure include long-term prepaid expenses and associated depreciation/amortization.
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(2) Segment information by geographical area
The following tables show segment information by geographical area for fiscal years ended March 2004 and 2005.
Japan

Previous fiscal
year ended
March 31, 2004

Current fiscal
year ended
March 31, 2005

Net sales and operating income
Net sales
(1) Sales to external customers
(2) Intersegment sales/transfers
Total
Operating expenses
Operating income
Total assets
Net sales and operating income
Net sales
(1) Sales to external customers
(2) Intersegment sales/transfers
Total
Operating expenses
Operating income
Total assets

North
America

Asia

(Millions of yen)

Elimination
Consolidated
and Corporate

Total

(loss)
¥

26,826
230
27,056
24,186
2,869
18,305
(loss)

¥

1,318
4,248
5,567
5,036
530
4,032

¥

679
9
688
975
(286)
658

¥

28,824
4,488
33,312
30,198
3,114
22,996

—
(4,488)
(4,488)
(2,933)
(1,554)
3,433

¥

28,824
—
28,824
27,264
1,559
26,430

¥

¥

1,426
4,059
5,486
4,835
651
4,581

¥

972
—
972
1,242
(269)
1,172

¥

30,149
4,304
34,454
31,162
3,292
24,373

—
(4,304)
(4,304)
(2,653)
(1,651)
4,143

¥

30,149
—
30,149
28,509
1,640
28,516

27,750
245
27,996
25,085
2,910
18,620

Notes:
1. Regions are classified according to geographical proximity.
2. The countries encompassed by geographic segments other than Japan are as follows:
Asia: China and Taiwan; North America: USA
3. Unallocatable expenses included in “elimination and corporate” under “operating expenses” for fiscal years ended March 2004 and 2005 are ¥1,569 million and
¥1,657 million, respectively, and are mainly comprised of expenses incurred in the Company’s general affairs and personnel, finance, management planning and other
management departments.
4. Corporate “total assets” included as “eliminated” or “overall corporate accounting” for fiscal years ended March 2004 and 2005 are ¥5,948 million and ¥6,509 million,
respectively, and are mainly comprised of the Company’s investment in surplus funds (cash on hand and in bank, and securities), long-term investment funds (investments in securities) and assets of other management departments.

(3) Overseas sales (export sales and sales by overseas subsidiaries)
Overseas sales for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2004 (April 1, 2003 to March 31, 2004) and 2005 (April 1, 2004 to March 31,
2005) have not been presented as they represent less than 10% of total net sales.

Transactions with related parties
Fiscal year ended March 2005 (April 1, 2004 to March 31, 2005)
(1) The parent company and principal corporate shareholders are as follows.

Classification

Name of
company

Principal
PIP-TOKYO
corporate
Co., Ltd.
shareholders

Address

Chiyodaku, Tokyo

Capital or
investments in
capital

Industry
segment or
business
domains

¥1,563
million

Manufacture and
marketing of
medical hygiene
products, medical appliances,
household goods,
baby care products, etc.

Percentage of
Relations
shareholder
voting rights Interlocking Business
(shares owned)
officers
relations
(Shares
owned)
Direct
ownership:
11.9%

One
officer

Marketing of
the Company’s
baby care
products, toys,
health care
products

Detail of
Transaction
transactions
amount

Marketing
of products and
goods

Account
items

Balance at
the end of
the period

Accounts
receivable

¥313
million

Notes
receivable

¥656
million

¥1,696
million

Notes:
1. Consumption taxes are not included in the transaction amount, but included in the balance at the end of the period.
2. The Company's policy to determine the terms/conditions for business transactions:
The prices and other terms of business transactions related to the marketing of the Company's products are in accordance with similar terms of business transactions
with other related parties that have no association with the Company.
As such, the Company's terms of business transactions are not inferior to those of other related parties.
3. The Company's representative chairman of the Board, Yasuo Matsuura, serves as chairman of the Board of PIP-TOKYO Co., Ltd.

(2) Directors and individual major shareholders are as follows.
Classification

Name of
director

Address

Capital or
investments in
capital

Industry
segment or
business
domains

Percentage of
Relations
shareholder
voting rights Interlocking Business
(shares owned)
officers
relations

Detail of
Transaction
transactions
amount

Director

Yasuo
Matsuura

—

—

Chairman,
Representative
Director Combi
Corporation

(Shares
owned)
Direct ownership: 2.1%

Transfer of
membership

—

—

Notes:
1. Consumption taxes are not included in the transaction amount.
2. The Company's policy to determine the terms/conditions for business transactions:
The price of membership was determined referring to prevailing marketing price disclosed by membership dealers.

¥24
million

Account
items

Balance at
the end of
the period

—

—
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Tax effect accounting
(Millions of yen)

2005

2004
(1) Breakdown of principal causes of deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets
Repudiation of provision to accrued
retirement benefits for officers
¥ 119
Non-deductible allowance for doubtful accounts
62
Non-deductible accrued bonuses to employees
119
Net loss carried forward
369
Repudiation of loss on revaluation of inventories
52
Repudiation of provision to accrued retirement
benefits for employees
24
Repudiation of accrued enterprise tax
5
Other deferred tax assets
89
Subtotal
842
Valuation reserve
(340)
Total deferred tax assets
502
Deferred tax liabilities
Reserve fund for fixed asset reduction
(184)
Other deferred tax liabilities
(50)
Total deferred tax liabilities
(234)
Net deferred tax assets
268

(1) Breakdown of principal causes of deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets
Repudiation of provision to accrued
retirement benefits for officers
¥ 117
Non-deductible allowance for doubtful accounts
31
Non-deductible accrued bonuses to employees
152
Net loss carried forward
760
Repudiation of loss on revaluation of inventories
24
Tax deduction
108
Repudiation of provision to accrued retirement
benefits for employees
7
Other deferred tax assets
101
Subtotal
1,303
Valuation reserve
(461)
Total deferred tax assets
842
Deferred tax liabilities
Reserve fund for fixed asset reduction
(187)
Other deferred tax liabilities
(86)
Total deferred tax liabilities
(274)
Net deferred tax assets
568

(2) Breakdown of principal causes for the difference between
legal effective tax rate and income taxes after tax effect
accounting is applied
Legal effective tax rate
42.0%
(adjustments)
Nondeductible items such as entertainment
expenses
0.6%
Residential tax on per-capita basis
1.6%
Reduction in year-end deferred tax assets
due to the change in tax rate
0.8%
Tax deduction
(7.5%)

(2) Breakdown of principal causes for the difference between
legal effective tax rate and income taxes after tax effect
accounting is applied
Legal effective tax rate
40.4%
(adjustments)
Nondeductible items such as entertainment
expenses
0.5%
Residential tax on per-capita basis
1.6%
Tax deduction
(8.5%)
Increase/decrease of valuation reserve
3.7%
Loss on revaluation of subsidiaries' share
and investments
(49.5%)
Difference in applicable tax rate
among overseas subsidiaries
(11.6%)
Non-application of tax effect
accounting to net income (loss) of subsidiaries 12.7%
Others
(0.7%)
Income taxes rate after tax effect
accounting is applied
(11.5%)

Difference in applicable tax rate
among overseas subsidiaries
Non-application of tax effect accounting
to net income (loss) of subsidiaries
Others
Income taxes rate after tax effect
accounting is applied

(11.8%)
10.7%
0.3%
36.7%

(3) Based on the law (Clause 9 of the law compiled in 2003)
to revise part of the Local Tax Law, legal effective tax rate
applied to calculate deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities of fiscal year ended March 2004 has been
changed to 40.4%. As a result, deferred tax assets (after
deducting deferred tax liabilities) decreased ¥11,057 thousand and income taxes adjustment and variances on securities valuation recorded for fiscal year ended March 2004
increased ¥11,143 thousand and ¥85 thousand, respectively.
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Information for securities
Year ended March 31, 2004

Securities
1. Held-to-maturity securities with market value

(Millions of yen)

Type

Carrying amount

Market value exceeds
carrying amount

Government bonds

Market value is less than
carrying amount

Market value

¥ 214

¥ 217

214

217

2

Government bonds

—

—

—

Subtotal

—

—

—

214

217

2

Subtotal

Total
2. Other securities with market quotations

acquisition cost
Carrying amount is less
than acquisition cost

Acquisition cost

Carrying amount

Gross unrealized
gains (losses)

(1) Equity securities

¥ 22

(2) Corporate bonds

100

105

5

Subtotal

123

191

68

(1) Equity securities

—

—

—

(2) Corporate bonds

—

—

—

Subtotal
Total

3. Other securities without market quotations

¥ 2

(Millions of yen)

Type
Carrying amount exceeds

Gross unrealized
gains (losses)

¥ 85

¥ 62

—

—

—

123

191

68

(Millions of yen)

Carrying amount
Other securities
¥ 772

(1) Unlisted equity securities
(excluding over-the-counter securities)

909

(2) Money management fund, etc.

4. Future redemption values of other securities with maturities or
held-to-maturity bonds
Within one year

Over one year but
within five years

(Millions of yen)

Over five years but
within ten years

Bonds
—

(1) Government bonds

85

130

(2) Corporate bonds

50

60

—

Total

135

190

—

37
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Year ended March 31, 2005

Securities
1. Held-to-maturity securities with market value

(Millions of yen)

Type
(1) Govermment bonds

Market value exceeds

Carrying amount
¥130

¥131

60

60

(2) Corporate bonds

carrying amount

Subtotal

Market value is less
than carrying amount

Market value

192

1

—

—

—

(2) Corporate bonds

—

—

—

—

—

—

190

192

1

2. Other securities with market quotations

(Millions of yen)

Type

Carrying amount is less
than acquisition cost

1
0

190

Total

acquisition cost

¥

(1) Govermment bonds
Subtotal

Carrying amount exceeds

Gross unrealized
gains (losses)

Acquisition cost

Carrying amount

Gross unrealized
gains (losses)

(1) Equity securities

¥ 22

¥ 84

¥ 62

(2) Corporate bonds

51

54

3

Subtotal

73

139

65

(1) Equity securities

—

—

—

(2) Corporate bonds

—

—

—

Subtotal

—

—

—

73

139

65

Total
3. Other securities without market quotations

(Millions of yen)

Carrying amount

Remarks

Other securities
(1) Unlisted equity securities
(2) Money management fund

¥ 793
909

4. Future redemption values of other securities with maturities or held-to-maturity bonds
Within one year
Bonds
(1) Governmental bonds
(2) Corporate bonds
Total

¥100
54
154

Over one year but
within five years
¥

(Millions of yen)

Over five years but
within ten years

30
66
96

—
—
—

Retirement benefits
1. Outline of the Company’s retirement benefit plans
The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries have established comprehensive pension programs: the Employees’ Pension
Fund Program and the Approved Retirement Annuity System as defined-benefit plan. The Company may provide for premium severance pay as employees’ retirement benefits. Please note that the Company has no retirement benefits plan for overseas consolidated
subsidiaries.
2. Employees’ retirement benefit obligations
A. Employees’ retirement benefit obligations
B. Pension assets
C. Unreserved employees’ retirement benefit obligations (A + B)
D. Unrecognized difference realized from actuarial calculation
E. Unrecognized past employment obligations
F. Net amount recorded in consolidated balance sheets (C+D+E)
G. Prepaid pension cost
H. Accrued employees’ retirement benefits (F–G)

(Millions of yen)

2004
¥ (1,292)
945
(346)
285
—
(60)
—
(60)

2005
¥ (1,323)
1,074
(248)
230
—
(18)
—
(18)

38 Note: Pension assets calculated using contribution ratio applied to Employees' Pension Fund Program is ¥2,497 million for the fiscal year ended March 2004 and
¥2,829 million for the fiscal year ended March 2005.
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(Millions of yen)

3. Employees’ retirement benefit costs
2004
¥ 88
24
(19)
41
—
134

A. Employment cost
B. Interest cost
C. Expected investment yield
D. Appropriation of actuarial difference as expense
E. Appropriation of past employment liabilities as expense
F. Employees’ retirement benefit cost (A+B+C+D+E)

2005
¥ 93
25
(23)
36
—
132

Note: Besides the above employees' benefit cost, the following amounts have been appropriated as employees' retirement benefit costs: Employer's contribution against
employees' pension fund of ¥96million for fiscal year ended March 2004, and ¥111million for fiscal year ended March 2005,; Premium severance pay of ¥18million
for fiscal year ended March 2004, and ¥31million for fiscal year ended March 2005.

4. Basis of calculating employees’ retirement benefit obligations
A. Allocation of expected employees’ retirement benefits
B. Discount rate
C. Expected rate of return from investment
D. Appropriation period for past employment liabilities
E. Appropriation period for actuarial difference

2004
Flat-rate standard during the period
2.0%
2.5%
—
10 years

2005
Same as on the left
2.0%
2.5%
—
Same as on the left

(The amount allocated based on
straight-line method for a certain
period within the average remaining
employment period for employees at
the start of each fiscal year has been
appropriated as expense in the following fiscal year.)

Status of production, orders and sales
(1) Production
Industry Segment
Baby Care Products and Toys
Health Care Products
Total

(Millions of yen)

2005
¥ 10,506
1,464
11,971

Year–on–year comparison
(3.6%)
(0.7)
(3.2)

Note: Figures above represent the cost of production.

(2) Orders
The Company does not perform order-made production.
(3) Procured products
Industry Segment
Baby Care Products and Toys
Health Care Products
Total

(Millions of yen)

2005
¥ 2,814
584
3,399

Year–on–year comparison
21.3%
19.5
21.0

Note: Figures above represent cost of procurement.

(4) Sales
Industry Segment
Baby Care Products and Toys
Health Care Products
Total

(Millions of yen)

2005
¥ 27,009
3,140
30,149

Year–on–year comparison
5.5%
(2.5)
4.6

39
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Non-consolidated financial statements
Balance sheets
Combi Corporation
Years ended March 31

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2004

2005

2005

¥ 14,546

¥ 16,446

$ 153,151

Cash on hand and in banks

2,174

3,114

29,000

Notes receivable

1,172

1,198

11,161

Accounts receivable

5,257

5,564

51,814

Securities

1,038

1,057

9,851

Inventories

3,327

3,431

31,957

Deferred tax assets

140

490

4,568

Accounts due

395

330

3,074

1,091

1,282

11,941

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Other current assets
Allowance for doubtful accounts

(51)

(23)

Fixed Assets:

8,781

7,493

69,775

Tangible fixed assets:

4,907

4,742

44,163

Buildings

1,602

1,520

14,157

Land

2,786

2,786

25,945

518

436

4,060

582

540

5,032

3,291

2,210

20,580

936

838

7,807

1,012

316

2,944

444

98

915

—

649

6,050

Deferred tax assets

295

18

174

Others

754

486

4,532

Allowance for doubtful accounts

(152)

(198)

(1,844)

Others
Intangible fixed assets:
Investments and Others:
Investments in securities
Stocks of subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries
Long-term loan to subsidiaries

Total Assets

¥ 23,327

¥ 23,940

Note: Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the exchange rate of US$1=¥107.39 as of March 31, 2005.

40

(216)

$ 222,927
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Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2004

2005

2005

¥ 6,852

¥ 5,947

$ 55,380

Notes payable

2,046

2,168

20,191

Accounts payable

1,219

1,429

13,311

870

710

6,611

Current portion of bonds (due within one year)

1,000

—

—

Payment due

1,061

1,053

9,810

Fees payable

173

170

1,584

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Short-term bank loans

Income taxes payable

38

—

—

Consumption taxes payable

1

—

—

Advance received

3

8

80

Deposits received

14

13

128

Accrued bonuses to employees

259

289

2,692

Other current liabilities

163

104

1,178

Long-term Liabilities:

2,032

3,795

35,346

Bonds

1,000

3,000

27,935

60

18

168

Accrued retirement benefits for officers

295

290

2,704

Deposit received for guarantees

394

400

3,729

Derivative liabilities

281

—

—

—

86

809

8,885

9,743

90,726

Capital:

2,991

2,991

27,860

Capital Surplus:

2,783

2,783

25,921

Additional paid-in capital

2,783

2,783

25,921

Retained Earnings:

8,627

8,384

78,078

324

324

3,021

Voluntary reserve

1,024

1,009

9,400

Unappropriated retained earnings

7,278

7,050

65,657

40

38

362

(1)

(2)

(22)

Accrued retirement benefits for employees

Other long-term liabilities
Total Liabilities

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Legal earnings reserve

Variances on Securities Valuation:
Treasury Stock:
Total Shareholders' Equity
Total Liabilities and Total Shareholders' Equity

14,442

14,197

132,200

¥ 23,327

¥ 23,940

$222,927

Note: Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the exchange rate of US$1=¥107.39 as of March 31, 2005.

41

combi E 2005 p41-48(5C).qxd 05.9.12 11:06 ページ42

For reference only

Statements of income
Combi Corporation
Years ended March 31

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2004

2005

¥ 24,512

¥ 24,833

$ 231,243

Cost of Sales

14,363

14,253

132,727

Gross Profit

10,148

10,579

98,516

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

8,960

9,397

87,509

Operating Income

1,188

1,182

11,006

Non-Operating Income

190

261

2,437

Non-Operating Expenses

214

238

2,220

Extraordinary Income

48

50

468

Extraordinary Losses

14

1,186

11,049

1,198

68

642

411

11

103

12

(72)

(673)

774

130

1,211

6,683

7,100

66,117

179

179

1,672

¥ 7,278

¥ 7,050

$ 65,657

Net Sales

Income Before Income Taxes
Provision for income tax, inhabitant tax and enterprise tax
Income taxes adjustment
Net Income
Retained earnings brought forward
Interim dividends
Unappropriated retained earnings

2005

Note: Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the exchange rate of US$1=¥107.39 as of March 31, 2005.
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Statements of appropriation of retained earnings
Combi Corporation
Years ended march 31

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2004

2005

¥ 7,278)

¥ 7,050)

$ 65,657)

3)

3)

30)

12)

11)

105)

7,294)

7,065)

65,793)

179)

179)

1,672)

(10.00)

(10.00)

(0.09)

13)

—)

—)

24)

—)

—)

336)

—)

—)

¥ 7,100)

¥ 6,885)

$ 64,121)

Unappropriated retained earnings for the period

2005

Reversed voluntary reserve
Reversed reserve for special depreciation/amortization
Reversed reserve fund for fixed asset reduction
Total
Appropriated earnings
Cash dividends
(per share in yen and U.S. dollars)
Officers’ bonuses
Voluntary reserves
Reserve for special depreciation/amortization
Reserve fund for fixed asset reduction

Retained earnings carried forward
Notes:

1. Treasury stock (fiscal year ended March 2005: 3,424 shares; fiscal year ended March 2004: 2,598 shares) has been excluded from cash dividends.
2. Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the exchange rate of US$1=¥107.39 as of March 31, 2005.

Breakdown of dividends per share:

2004
Annual dividend Interim dividend

Common stock

2005
End of period

Annual dividend Interim dividend

End of period

Yen

Yen

Yen

Yen

Yen

Yen

20.00

10.00

10.00

20.00

10.00

10.00

20.00

10.00

10.00

20.00

10.00

10.00

—

—

—

—

—

—

(Breakdown)
Common dividend
Commemorative dividend

43
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Footsteps of Combi Corporation
Sanshin Ltd. founded in 1957 as a manufacturer and
distributor of medical equipment and medical support
products, in 1961 acquired Mimatsu Chemicals Ltd., a
firm holding manufacturing and processing technologies
for plastic products. The merged company began producing nursing bottles, potties and children’s tableware
under the brand name of Combi. This was the birth of
the Combi brand. In 1968, the firm renamed itself as
Combi Corporation and started to extensively develop

Corporate history

Dec.

1957

Sanshin Limited was founded in Shinagawa-ku, Tokyo with ¥ 2 million
capitalization with the corporate objective of manufacturing medical
apparatus and supplements, and selling pharmaceuticals.

Apr.

1961

Sanshin moved into the manufacture, processing and sale of plastics,
acquiring Mimatsu Chemicals Limited. New factory in Tsurumi-ku,
Yokohama City began producing feeding bottles, potties and baby care
tableware under the brand name “Combi.”

Mar.

1968

Company name was changed to Combi Corporation. Began production
and sales of “Baby Rack” high chairs.

1966
Apr.

Swan potty

1977

Head Office was moved to Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo.

Apr.

1970

The new Yokohama Factory was constructed in Tsurumi-ku. (Closed
September, 1994)

Jul.

1972

A new factory with increased production and warehousing facilities
was conducted in Iwatsuki City (currently Saitama City), Saitama.

Feb.

1977

Began production and sales of “Sandra” stroller.

May

1982

Combi Health Corporation was established.

Mar.

1984

Combi entered the exercise machines market. Production of AEROBIKE
began at the Saitama Factory.

Jun.

1985

Began production and sales of “Safety Seat DX” to penetrate into the
child car seat market in full scale.

Jul.

1989

US sales subsidiary, Combi International Corporation, was established
in Chicago.

Jul.

1991

The subsidiary Combi Asia Limited was established in Hong Kong as a
development, production and sales base.

Sep.

The Minami-Urawa Techno-Center opened.

Oct.

Combi shares were registered with the Japan Securities Dealers
Association and listed on the OTC market in Japan.

Jan.

1992

Combi Asia Limited began production at a new factory situated in the
special economic development zone at Shenzhen in Dong Guang,
China.

Apr.

1995

The company name of Combi Health Corporation was changed to
Combi Cha cha Corporation.

Stroller "Sandra"

Dec.

Combi (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. was established.

Feb.

1996

Head Office was moved to Taito-ku, Tokyo.

Feb.

1997

The Biotechnology Laboratory was opened in Oomiya City (currently
Saitama City), Saitama.

Jun.

44

baby care products. It was around this time when simple tin potties were the standard in the market that the
Company introduced the Swan potty by effectively
applying its plastic manufacturing technology and
instantly established the name “Combi of baby care
products” among households with children.
Combi then moved on to actively expand its product
line-ups to include high chairs, baby tubs and toys. The
Company began production and marketing of strollers

Aug.

A factory of Dong Guan Combi Stroller & Toys Co., Ltd. began production.
1998

Combi (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. began to manage Pudong Baseball Stadium
in Shanghai, China.
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in 1977 and subsequently of child car seats in 1979 to
position itself in the market as an all-around manufacturer of baby care products.
Meanwhile, Combi made its health equipment and
goods division become an independent company in
1982, and commenced development and manufacturing
of AEROBIKE (trademark registered by Combi) in 1984
with the aim of penetrating the fitness market. This is
the predecessor of Combi Wellness Corporation current-

The Saitama Factory obtained ISO14001 certification.

Dec.
May

1999

The Biotechnology Laboratory was moved to Urawa City (currently
Saitama City), Saitama.
Increased capitalization to ¥2,991.92 million by public offering.

Sep.
May

ly manufacturing and marketing fitness equipment and
nursing care products.
While retaining the baby-product business as its core
business, Combi develops and conducts businesses
aimed at serving not only babies, but all family members. Today, Combi is expanding its business globally by
operating multiple manufacturing and marketing bases
abroad.

2000

The Dong Guan Factory obtained ISO9002 certification.

Jul.

Began “Combi Mini” brand to enter the baby wear market in full scale.

Oct.

Began sales of functional food diet jelly “Be. Quarter.”

Oct.

Established the Tsukuba Distribution Center.

Dec.

Combi Cha Cha Coporation obtained ISO14001 certification.

Sep.

2001

A sales subsidiary of Combi Asia Ltd., Combi (Taiwan) Co., Ltd. was
established in Taipei, Taiwan.

Oct.

Combi Wellness Corporation was eatablished.

Nov.

Combi Plaza Nakano Nursery School was established by Combi Cha Cha
Corporation.

Nov.

Combi Wellness Corporation agreed with Nautilus Inc. on franchise in
Japan.

Dec.

Ningbo Combi Baby Goods Co.,Ltd. began production of high chairs.

Mar.

2002

Promoted to the Second Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange from the
OTC market.

Apr.

The Functional Foods Division was launched to expand the functional
foods business.

Oct.

New logo was adopted based on the vision for the Combi brand “to
create a world where people can enjoy and feel happy about baby
care.”

Mar.

2003

The “Baby Label” series of baby care tableware, potties, etc. won the
Good Design Award of the Japan Industrial Design Promotion
Organization.

Dec.

Combi Cha Cha Corporation made investment in Success Academy Co.,
Ltd.
2004

AEROBIKE ai

2003

Promoted to the First Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange.

Oct.

Jan.

2001

Do kids 5

Combi Cha Cha Corporation obtained the goodwill of Samantha Co. Ltd.

Feb.

The US-based affiliate changed its corporate name to “Combi USA,
Inc.” and was moved to South Carolina.

Apr.

Combi Cha Cha Corporation changed its corporate name to CombiWith
Corporation.

Oct.

Combi Mini baby wear “Wrap Crotch” obtained patent.

Oct.

"Baby Soft Carrier Ninna Nanna F-180" received the First Gold Prize of
Good Design Award for a baby product.

45
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Directors, executive officers and auditors
As of June 29, 2005

Chairman

Standing Auditor

Yasuo Matsuura

Kazuhiko Ohfuku
Auditors

Toshio Kumon
Hideo Takasaki
Michiaki Tsukada
President

Hiromasa Matsuura

Executive Vice-President

Shoji Shibata

Managing Director

Michita Kinoshita
Directors

Sei Kasai
Noboru Kotani*
Executive Officers

Tomohiro Moriki
Koichi Kobayashi
Yoshichika Horino
Teruo Enomoto
Hideki Ohno

46

* Mr. Noboru Kotani is an outside director.
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Organization chart
As of June 29, 2005

Corporate Planning Department
International Operation Department
Accounting & Financing Division
Personnel & Administration Division
Internal Auditing
Division

Executive Board

IT & Work Reform Office
Apparel Division
Juvenile Products Sales Division
Toy R&D Department

Meeting of
Shareholders

Board of
Directors

Chairman

President

Supply Chain Center
R&D Planning Division
Technology Division
Quality Assurance Division

Corporate Auditors

Functional Foods Division
Production & Distribution Division
Environmental Management Department
Consumer Plaza
Soft Service Division

Main subsidiaries
As of June 29, 2005

Domestic Subsidiaries

•CombiWith Corporation
Established:
Paid-in Capital:
Ownership:
President and CEO:
Location:
URL:

May 26, 1982
¥30 million
100% owned by Combi Corporation
Hideyuki Nakamura
Taito-ku, Tokyo
http://www.combiwith.co.jp/

•Combi Wellness Corporation
Established:
Paid-in Capital:
Ownership:
President and CEO:
Location:
URL:

October 1, 2001
¥50 million
100% owned by Combi Corporation
Kunio Sekine
Taito-ku, Tokyo
http://www.combi-wellness.co.jp/

Overseas Subsidiaries

•Combi USA, Inc.
Established:
Paid-in Capital:
Ownership:
Chairman:
Location:
URL:

July 24, 1989
US$8.5 million
100% owned by Combi Corporation
Shoji Shibata
South Carolina, U.S.A.
http://www.combi-intl.com/

•Dong Guan Combi Stroller & Toys Co., Ltd.
Established:
Paid-in Capital:
Ownership:
Chairman:
Location:

April 14, 1994
HK$58.863 million
100% owned by Combi Asia Limited
Sei Kasai
Guang Dong Province, China

•Ningbo Combi Baby Goods Co., Ltd.
•Combi Asia Limited
Established:
Paid-in Capital:
Ownership:
Chairman:
Location:

July 9, 1991
HK$15 million
100% owned by Combi Corporation
Sei Kasai
Hong Kong, China

Established:
Paid-in Capital:
Ownership:
Chairman:
Location:

June 16, 1994
US$2 million
100% owned by Combi Asia Limited
Takayuki Fujieda
Zhe Jiang Province, China

•Combi (Taiwan) Co., Ltd.
•Combi (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
Established:
Paid-in Capital:
Ownership:
Chairman:
Location:

December 30, 1995
US$6.3 million
100% owned by Combi Corporation
Sei Kasai
Shanghai, China

Established:
Paid-in Capital:
Ownership:
Chairman:
Location:
URL:

September 12, 2001
NT$20 million
75% owned by Combi Asia Limited
Yasuo Matsuura
Taipei, Taiwan
http://www.combi.com.tw/
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Shareholder information
As of March 31, 2005

Number of shares issued by the Company
60,000,000

Major shareholders

Shares outstanding
17,959,158
Number of shares constituting one unit
500
Number of shareholders
3,749
Shareholder breakdown
Financial institutions
Individuals and
other shareholders

17.61%

43.95%

Securities
companies

0.45%

Number of shares Percentage of
(Thousand)
voting rights (%)

PIP-TOKYO CO., LTD

2,140

11.91

Matsuura Kousan Co., Ltd.

2,084

11.60

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd.
(Trust Account)

921

5.12

Matsuura Enterprise B.V.

660

3.67

P&M, Ltd.

574

3.19

Yasuo Matsuura

380

2.11

The Master Trust Bank
of Japan, Ltd. (Trust Account)

374

2.08

Makoto Suzuki

367

2.04

Noriko Matsushita

362

2.01

Ecel, Ltd.

333

1.85

Common stock price range
(Stock prices in the last five fiscal years)
Other corporations

30.87%

1,500

(Yen)

Non-Japanese corporations

7.12%

1,000

500

0
FY2001
FY2002
FY2003
FY2004
FY2005
Note: The highs and lows of stock prices since March 3, 2003 are those of the
First Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange (TSE), and since March 20, 2002
are those of the Second Section of the TSE. Before March 20, 2002, they
are of the Japan Securities Dealers Association.
For fiscal 2004, the high of stock price is of the First Section of the TSE,
and the low of stock price is of the Second Section of the TSE.

(Stock prices in the last 12 months)

(Yen)

1,000
800
600
400
200
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2004
2005
Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sep. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar.
Note: The highs and lows of stock prices are those of the First Section of the
Tokyo Stock Exchange.
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Corporate profile
As of March 31, 2005

Company name:

Offices:

Combi Corporation

Head Office
Taito-ku, Tokyo 111-0041

Established:

Tel. +81-3-5828-7666

December 2, 1957
Tokyo Office
Paid-in capital:
¥2,991.92 million

Nagoya Office

Number of employees:

Osaka Office

285 (1,334 on a consolidated basis)
Fukuoka Office
Main business:
Development, manufacture, sale, export and technical licensing of

Sapporo Office

juvenile and ancillary products, toys, exercise machines, home
health apparatus and medical devices.

Hiroshima Office

Main transacting banks:

Minami-Urawa Techno-Center

UFJ Bank Limited
Mizuho Bank, Ltd.

Saitama Factory

Others
Tsukuba Distribution Center
Functional Foods Center

Minami-Urawa Techno-Center
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2-6-7 Motoasakusa Taito-ku,Tokyo 111-0041, Japan
TEL: 03-5828-7666 FAX: 03-5828-7665
http://www.combi.co.jp/

Printed in Japan

